
DECERTIFICATION EVENTS  

(e) A railroad shall only consider violations of its operating rules and practices 
that involve:  

(1) Failure to take appropriate action to prevent the locomotive engineer of the 
train the conductor is assigned to from failing to control a locomotive or train in 
accordance with a signal indication, excluding a hand or a radio signal indication 
or a switch, that requires a complete stop before passing it, when the conductor is 
located in the operating cab, or otherwise has knowledge of the signal indication. 
Appropriate action does not mean that a conductor must prevent a violation from 
occurring at all costs; the duty may be met by warning an engineer of a potential 
or foreseeable violation.  

(2) Failure to take appropriate action to prevent the locomotive engineer of the 
train the conductor is assigned to from failing to adhere to the following 
limitations concerning train speed:  

(i) When the conductor is located in the operating cab and the speed at which the 
train was operated exceeds the maximum authorized limit by at least 10 miles per 
hour. Where restricted speed is in effect, railroads shall consider only those 
violations of the conditional clause of restricted speed rules (i.e., the clause that 
requires stopping within one half of the locomotive engineer's range of vision), or 
the operational equivalent thereof, which cause reportable accidents or incidents 
under part 225 of this chapter, except for accidents and incidents that are 
classified as “covered data” under § 225.5 of this chapter. Appropriate action does 
not mean that a conductor must prevent a violation from occurring at all costs; the 
duty may be met by warning an engineer of a potential or foreseeable violation.  

(ii) When not in the operating cab, the conductor is deemed to have taken 
appropriate action when in compliance with all applicable Railroad Operating 
Rules and Special Instructions.  

(3) Failure to perform or have knowledge that a required brake test was performed 
pursuant to the Class I, Class IA, Class II, Class III, or transfer train brake test 
provisions of part 232 of this chapter or the Class 1, Class 1A, Class II, or running 
brake test provisions of part 238 of this chapter.  

(4) Failure to take appropriate action to prevent the locomotive engineer of the 
train the conductor is assigned to from occupying main track or a segment of main 
track without proper authority or permission. Appropriate action does not mean 
that a conductor must prevent a violation from occurring at all costs; the duty may 
be met by warning an engineer of a potential or foreseeable violation.  

(5) Failure to comply with prohibitions against tampering with locomotive 
mounted safety devices; knowingly fail to take appropriate action to prevent the 
locomotive engineer of the train the conductor is assigned to from failing to 



comply with prohibitions against tampering with locomotive mounted safety 
devices; or knowingly fail to take appropriate action to prevent the locomotive 
engineer of the train the conductor is assigned to from operating or permitting to 
be operated a train with an unauthorized disabled safety device in the controlling 
locomotive. (See 49 CFR part 218, subpart D and appendix C to part 218);  

(6) Failure to comply with the provisions of § 218.99 of this chapter (Shoving or 
pushing movements). Railroads shall only consider those violations of § 218.99 of 
this chapter which cause reportable accidents or incidents under part 225 of this 
chapter, except for accidents and incidents that are classified as “covered data” 
under § 225.5 of this chapter.  

(7) Failure to comply with the provisions of § 218.101 of this chapter (Leaving 
rolling and on-track maintenance-of-way equipment in the clear). Railroads shall 
only consider those violations of § 218.101 of this chapter which cause reportable 
accidents or incidents under part 225 of this chapter, except for accidents and 
incidents that are classified as “covered data” under § 225.5 of this chapter.  

(8) Failure to comply with the provisions of § 218.103 of this chapter (Hand-
operated switches, including crossover switches). Railroads shall only consider 
those violations of § 218.103 of this chapter which cause reportable accidents or 
incidents under part 225 of this chapter, except for accidents and incidents that are 
classified as “covered data” under § 225.5 of this chapter.  

(9) Failure to comply with the provisions of § 218.105 of this chapter (Additional 
operational requirements for hand-operated main track switches). Railroads shall 
only consider those violations of § 218.105 of this chapter which cause reportable 
accidents or incidents under part 225 of this chapter, except for accidents and 
incidents that are classified as “covered data” under § 225.5 of this chapter.  

(10) Failure to comply with the provisions of § 218.107 of this chapter 
(Additional operational requirements for hand-operated crossover switches). 
Railroads shall only consider those violations of § 218.107 of this chapter which 
cause reportable accidents or incidents under part 225 of this chapter, except for 
accidents and incidents that are classified as “covered data” under § 225.5 of this 
chapter.  

(11) Failure to comply with the provisions of § 218.109 of this chapter (Hand-
operated fixed derails). Railroads shall only consider those violations of § 
218.109 of this chapter which cause reportable accidents or incidents under part 
225 of this chapter, except for accidents and incidents that are classified as 
“covered data” under § 225.5 of this chapter.  

(12) Failure to comply with § 219.101 of this chapter; however such incidents 
shall be considered as a violation only for the purposes of § 242.405(a)(2) and (3).  

(f)  



(1) If in any single incident the person's conduct contravened more than one 
operating rule or practice, that event shall be treated as a single violation for the 
purposes of this section.  

(2) A violation of one or more operating rules or practices described in paragraphs 
(e)(1) through (11) of this section that occurs during a properly conducted 
operational compliance test subject to the provisions of this chapter shall be 
counted in determining the periods of ineligibility described in § 242.405.  

(3) An operational test that is not conducted in compliance with this part, a 
railroad's operating rules, or a railroad's program under § 217.9 of this chapter, 
will not be considered a legitimate test of operational skill or knowledge, and will 
not be considered for certification, recertification or revocation purposes.  

REQUIRED PERIODS OF DECERTIFICATION  

(ii) In the case of a single incident involving violation of one or more of the 
operating rules or practices described in § 242.403(e)(1) through (11), the person 
shall have his or her certificate revoked for a period of 30 calendar days.  

(iii) In the case of two separate incidents involving a violation of one or more of 
the operating rules or practices described in § 242.403(e)(1) through (11), that 
occurred within 24 months of each other, the person shall have his or her 
certificate revoked for a period of six months.  

(iv) In the case of three separate incidents involving violations of one or more of 
the operating rules or practices, described in § 242.403(e)(1) through (12), that 
occurred within 36 months of each other, the person shall have his or her 
certificate revoked for a period of one year.  

(v) In the case of four separate incidents involving violations of one or more of 
the operating rules or practices, described in § 242.403(e)(1) through (12), that 
occurred within 36 months of each other, the person shall have his or her 
certificate revoked for a period of three years. 


